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BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

DIRECTORS® REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Board of Directors:

M. Claus Thottrup - Chatrman
My, Nigls Bentzen
Mr. Stuart P, Blackburn

The directors present herewith their anmual report together with the audited consolidated finanem! stmiements of Borgn
Lifestyle Finance P.L.C. ithe “Company ™) and the CGronp for the vear ended 31 December 2021,

Registration

The companies making up the Borgo Lifestyle Finance P.L.C. group (the “CGiroup”) include that of its subsidiary, namely
Big Bloe Croising: Limited, and that of its sub-subsidiary, namely Big Blue Yachting Yaorcilik AS, o company which was
Hguidoted during 2021,

The Borgo Lifestyle Finance P.L.C. group in tumn forms:part of the Borgo Lifestvle Group Srl (the “Parent™), an Italian
company whose mterests overseas include, property development and restoration, the operation of a restored villy m
Tuscany, ltaly, as a haxory botel, the manning of a cooking schonl, as well as the opemtion of a Michelin starred
regtourant in the oty of Florence, laly.

Principal Activities
The prmeipal activities of the Company are those of acting 0s o holdingand finance company to related comprnies,

Cm |12 Febroary 2019, the Company issued € 5,000,000 5% Secured Callable Bonds maturing 2026-2029 at a nominal
value of € 100 per bond, issued at par. These bonds were admitted to the official list of the Malta Stock Exchange with
effect from |2 February 2009 and trading in the bomids commeneed on 13 February 20} 9.

In secordonee with the provistans of the Prospectus dised 25 January 2019, the proceeds from the bond issue have heon
advameed by way of two loan facilities as follows:

i 0 loan for € 20000000 to Big Blue Cruising Limited, a subsidiory company which is also acting as the Guamntor,
ond which owns, operates and charters the superyacht MY SATORL, The pimpose for the lonn was that of the
refinanging of the debt due mrespect of the constriction of the said yacht; and

(i) alpen for € LE2L000 10 Relas Borgo San Pigtro Sl (the “Rehited™ company), which operates an 8(H) year gld
restored villa in Tuscany, laly, which was converted mto a1 luxury hotel development. The purpose for the loan
was thot of partly financing an upgrade project. This loan was subsequently assigned to Borgo Lifestvle Cinoup
Stl, the Parent company, but Relais Borgo San Pictro Srl still remained as a joint surety to the loan advanced,

Review af Business

The Company _

Dunng the year, the Company generated interest income from loons receivable from the Subsidinry and Parent
companies and incurmed interest casts with respect to the bond issue, The gross interest margin generated was suflicient
ta cover operating overheads and the Company registered an operating profit, however after accounting for taxation, the
Compamy again registered a loss for the year.

The Group

Revenue gencrated by the Group has increased m view of the relaxation of COVID measures which allowed the
Subsidiary 1o restart its yacht chartering operation in eamest, including the intraduction of new revemie streams o
further compliment the services offered, Unfortunately, operational costs also mereased and the Group registered an
pperating loss. Alter secounting for taxation, the Group again registered a loss for the year,
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Outlonk

The Ciroup's focos will contimue to be that of financing the Subsidiary and the Porent, as well as the operation of luxury
vacht charfers undertaken by the Subsidiary. Following the relaxation of COVID- 19 mensures, the Group has seen
return o the operation of yoeht charters, and in fact the level of revenue approximated that of pre-COVID levels,

With the remirn of confidence in the truvel and tourism industry and i lme with the worldwide wend of guests Tooking
for sechpded hxory holidays, the Subsidiry has seen 3 vigorous interest in people 1o return 1o do all the things that were
unforunately curtailed duning the pandemic, alheit in a safer environment, mcluding that of taking of vacht charters. The
faect that the Subsidiary company had installed state of the ant sanitization systems in order 1o ensure the utmost safery for
its guests and staff also helped, Confirmed bookings for 2022 indicate that projected revenues for 2022 wall be amained
In fact, at the beginning of the 2022 sepson, 14 chaners have already been sold and another one 15 in the pipeline, This
of course augurs well for the futore

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Company 1s essentinlly a specinl purpose vehicle setup to net a5 a finance comppny for companies within the Borgo
Lifestyle Group Srl (the “Parem™). It has raiscd finance through the ssue of bonds which are quoted on the Malta Stock
Exchange and goarmiesd by property held by Big Blue Cruising Limited (the “Subsidiary™), The proceeds from the
bond issne, net of expenses, have been advanced in the form of interest beanng: loans to its Subsidinry and 10 Relus
Borgo San Pietro Srl (the “Related™ company ), with, the latter loan subsequently heing assigned to Borgo Lifestyle Group
Srl fthe “Parent” company).

Since the Company does not carry out any trading activities itself. is it therefore, economically dependent an the busmess
prospects of the Subsidiary and Parent companics and extended groop companies, and whose core opemtions comprise
the ownership, mapagement and operation of the luxury superyachs MY SATORL. as well as that of the operation of
Relnis Borgo San Pietro, which is # luxury hotel development in Toscamy, Italy. Therefore, the nsks mirmsic in the
husimess and opemiions of the Group and extended group companies have a direct effect on the ability of the Company
o megt jts obligations m connection with the poyment of interest on the Bond and repayment of the principal when due,

The Group s subject to normal nsks associated with the haxury segment within the hospitality and yacht industry, The
Ciroup together with its. extended group companies had been jmtinlly negatively affected by the pandemie, however,
following the relaxation of messures, business opemtions for the Subsidiary were restarted and were similar to the pre-
COVID-19 penod.  As for the extended group operations which mcludes the hotel opemtion; duc to the facy that the
place 15 set m a more secluded arep, it mointained jts business with no particular negative offects, OF course, the market
i which the Group operates may also be affected by o number of pther factors, such as the national economy, political
developments. govermment regubations, mternational travel restnctions and changes in consumer demands,

The Group’s growth is relving on key senior personnel working within the Parent company organisation, The Group’s
growth simce inception is partly attnibutable to the efforts and abilitics of the key personnel of the foreign Parcnt
company, Being that the Group forms part of the Parent company organisation, the Group does not consider having any
undue risks with respect to relying on key senior personnel working within the Parent company organisation,

The Group is alse affected by reputational nsk thot can have a negative effect on the CGroup's abality 10 retain customers
Being that the Parent company grganisastion has been operating withim the luxury hospatality mdustry for some years, the
Grroup is confident that even here the Group does not bave any undue risks associnted with such matier,

The Group is-also exposed to economic conditions whereby negnative economic factors and trends could have a matennl
impact on the business of the Croup genemlly and may adversely affiect 1ts revenues.,

Finally, additional risks arise from notural disasters. terrorist activity and war, environmental aned health habilities and
pirncy risk.
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Guoarantor Performance for 2021 and prospects for 2022

Big Bloe Cruising Limited s revemues for 2021 have almost doubled compared to those of the previous vear, however
operaticanl costs also inerensed and the company registered a loss of € 155,933 for the year ended 31 December 202
Cash remmuned tght diring the year and the Subsidiary company apphied for a further loan of € 190,000 1o assist if m 1ts
working capital requirements.

With the gradual return to normality in the travel and hospitality sector, the Subsidiary company hos registered
confirmed bookings for 2022 which indicate that revenies for 2022 will be as projected. The company’s futare plans
confirm the presence on board of exceprional events that could contime avtracting the gtiention of customers, meluding
the presence on board of the three stamred chel Bottura, who has been confirmed for the 2022 scasom. This, wogether with
the other new revenue streams introduced during 2021, augor well for the venrs ahead,

COVID-19

The Coronavirps (COVID-| %) pandeniic contmues affecting economic and financial markets worldwide, and virtantly all
industries are facing challepges ossociated with the economie conditions resulting from efforts to address i

The Company’s and the Group’s operations had initially been negatively affected by the pandemic. Although COVID-19
was - still present durme 2021, the business operations for its Subsidiary improved compared to 2020 and revenues
generated were similar to pre-COVID-19 penod. Bookmgs for 2022 have been confirmed in 2021 which mdicate thar
revenies for 2022 will be as projected. At the beginning of the 2022 sepsom, 14 chaners have already been sold and
another one 5 in the pipeline. This result 15w ling with the worldwide trend of guests lonking for secluded lumury
holidnys, As for the results of the extended Group which includes the Hotel opemtion, due to the fact that the place is set
m-a more secluded area, it maintained its busmess with no, particular negative: effects. To be more precise, from the list
forecas) projections, on the opening day of the hotel gperation, the relnted company has already received bookings which
mdicate that the yearly budget i terms of vearly mooms revenues were achioved with o pet average daily mte of € 1.574
and p yearly occupancy rate of 0, 72%

The directors hayve assessed the effect of COVI-19 on the Company's and the Croup's opemtions and noted that being
a holding and fmance company, its resolts are dependent an the results of 1ts subsidiary and parent compamies whom i
has finsnced. The Compony notes that both these companigs opemtions are showing improvements - and progressing as
projected, and therefore, the long-term assessment @ that the Company's and the Croup's assets wall be preseryved and
conscquently the going concern basis applied to these fmoncial statements is still applicable.

Russia - Ukrine Conflict

Conllicts between countries will always hove a negative effect hoth economically and globally. The increased challenges
brotght about by this sitaation cannot be 1gnored, however, it 15 noted that the Compomy and the Group have no reliance
on the region for clients or supplies and accordingly does not expect to be negatively impacted by sapctions on Russian
nationals, The Compmy and the Group continie moditormg the situation as it evalves.

Results, Dividends and Reserves

The results for the year and the movement on the reserves are as st out on pages 17, 19 and 20 of the financinl
statements respectively,  Being that the Company has accumulated losses, no dividends were recommended or paid
during the yenr.

Directors

The members serving on the Board of Directors are listed on page 2. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Associntion, all the directors shall retire from office once at leawt in ench three years but shall be eligible for re-election.
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Aunditors

Baker Tilly Malin have intimated theirr withingoess to contumue i ollice. A proposal 1o reappoint Baker Tilly Malt as
auditors of the Company will be put 1o the General Meeting.

Statement of Direciors’ Hesponsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Compames Act. 1995 (Chapter 386, Laws of Malta) (the “Act™) requires the directars of Borgo Lifestyle Finonce
P.L.C (the “Comparny™) to prepare consolidated finuncial statements for cach financial period which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at the end of the Ainancial penod and of the profit or loss
of the Company and the Group for that period in accordance with the requirements of Internanonal Financial Reporting
Standards o= adopted by the EL.

In preparmg these financial statements, the directors are required 1o

. ndopr the going concern basis unless it 1s mappropriate w presame that the Company and the Group will continue
in business:

. select suimble accountng policies and apply them consistently:

. make judyements ind estimates thst ave rensonable and prodent;

. pocount for income dnd charges relating to the accounting period on the socrunls basis

. vahle separately the components of asset and Hability items; and

. report comparative figures comesponding to those of the preceding aceounting period

The directors are responsible for Keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accumacy at any time
the financinl position of the Company and the Group and 1o enable them 1o ensure that the financtal statements comply
with the Companies Act (Cap, 386) enacted in Malta. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining such intemal controls as the directors determine is necessiry to enable the prepuration of financial
sttemients thit are free fom masterial misstatement, whether due wo frand or error, The directors are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventinn and
detection of fraud anid other irregulanitics,

Statement pursuant o the Capital Markets Rule 5,68 bsned by the Malta Financial Services Authority
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

e The fnuncial stastements give 4 true and fiir view of the Gnancial position of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2021, and of its finuncial performance und its cash flows for the period then ended in-secordance with
Internutionul Financinl Reporting Stundurds as adopted by the ELE und

o  The Anmunl Repprt includes a fair review of the development and performance of the busimess and the position of
the Company and the Group, together with the description of the pancipal risks and uncertainties that the Compony
and the Group may foce.
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Going Concorn Statement pursuant to Capital Markets Rule 5.62

In sccordance with the Capital Markets Rule 5.62 lssued by the Maolta Finoncinl Serviees Authority, the directors
confirm, that having reviewed the Company's and the Group's budget and forecast for 2022, nnd os described in e
notes o the financiol staterments, the Company and the Group hove sdequate resources 1o continué in operalion und
exislence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the dircctors have adopled the poing concern basis in preparing these
finaneial stntements.

Stutement pursuant to the Capital Markets Rule 5.64 issued by the Malts Financial Seevices Authority
We confirm that the sharchalding of the Company is as follows:

Borgo Lifestyle Group Sel (Ttaly) Ttalion Co. Reg. No, M1-2082215 171199 Ordinary Shares
Mr. Cluus Thorrup I Ordinery Shore

The shares of Borgo Lifestyle Group Srl are equally held by Mr, Claos Thotenp and Mrs. Teaneire Thonrup.
Contracts of Significance with the Related Parties

The Company has sdvanced nmounts borrowed by way of bonds lsted on the Malta Stock Exchange to its Subsidiary
company and a Related company, namely Big Blue Cruising Limited and Relais Borgo San Pictro Sel respectively. The
Related company subsequently nssigned the loan to the Parent company, bin the Related company remained a surcty 1o
the agreement. The terms of the loan agreements are seét out in the notes to the financial statements for the yeur ended
31 December 2021,

Approved by the Board of Directors an 13 May 2022 and signed on its behall by:

T . :3
- i " -‘H\"“._

" M. Claus Fipttrup ) M.
Diirector i




BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Introduction

Pursuant to the requirements of the Capitnl Murkets Rules ksued by the Malta Financial Services Authority, Borgo
Lifestyle Finance P.L.C. (the “Issuer™ or the “Company™) wgether with its wholly owned subsidiary Big Blue Cruising
Limited (the “Guarintor™), bereby reports on the extent to which the Company has adopted the “Codde of Principles of
Good Corporate Governance' appended to Chapter 5 of the Capitil Markers Rules as well as the measures adapied o
ensure compliange with the sume Principles,

The Board of Directirs of the Company notes that the Codé does not dictate or preseribe mandimtory rules but
fecommends prineiples of good povernance. Nevertheless, the Board strongly mamntains that the Principles are in the best
interent of both the sharcholders and investors, since they ensure thist the directors adhere 1o internationally recdgnised
high standards of cotpomte governance. ' '

The Board recognises that in Hoe with Capital Murkets Rule 5101, the Company s exempt from making available the
information set out in Capitil Markets Rules 5971 10 5973, 5976 and 597 X

The Guarnnior

The Guarantor, Big Bive Cruising Limited, is o private company and, becordingly, is not bound by the provisions of the
Code sel out in the Prospects Rules of the Malta Stock Exchange. While the Guarantor is nit required 10 adipt the
provision of the Code, the Audit Committee, which s set up at the level of the Company, has been specificdlly nisked
with keeping o watchiul briel over the performance of the Guarantor and other related companies,

Part 1: Complinnce with the Code

The Bourd of Directors (the “Bodnl™) of Borge Lifestyle Finanee P.L.C. (the "Company™) believie in the adoptidn of the
Code and hus endarsed them except where the siee and/or particulsr cireimstanies of the Company are decimed by the
Board not 1o warrant the implementution of specifie recommenditioms, Tn this context, i 18 relevam wonote that the
Compiiny has issued bonds w the public and has no emplovees, Accordingly, some of the provisions of the Code are not
upplicable whilkt others are applicable 108 limited extent,

Principle 1: The Board

The Board of Dircctors is responsible for devising n strategy and setting policies of the Company. It is also responsible
for reviewing internil control proceduncs, finuncinl performance amd busingss dsks icing the Campany, The Board 1s
also responsible (Gr decisions relating o the redemption of the Bond, and for monitaring that ils operatidns ate in
canformity with the Prospletus and all relevant rules and regulations,

The Board is composed of Mr, Claus Thottrup (Chairman), Mr. Niels Bentzen and Mr. Stuart P. Blackburm.

During the financiul year ended 31 December 2021, Mr, Claus Thottrup occupied vardous senior positions within the
Borgo Lilestvle Group of companies, The remuining directors, namely Mr, Nicls Bentzen and Mr. Stoart P. Blackburn
were appoinied afier the Company registmtion date, 1o act ay non-exeeutive and independent directors, since they are
cach free of any busiiess, family or other relationship with the lssuet, its ultimate benelicial sharcholder, of the
miznagement of either, thiit creates o conflict of interest such as to mmpair their judgement.

During the financial period utder review the Boand of Directors met on 3 oocasiong.

The Board delegntes specific responsibilitics to an Audit Committee, details of which nre foind in Principle 5 hereunder.
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Principle 1: The Bourd (Contd.)

The Directars and Restricted Persons (4s defined in the Capital Morkets Rules) are informed and are awire of their
obligations on dealings in securities of the Company within the established parsmeters of the law and the Capital
Markets Rules. Each such Director and Senior Officer (as defined in the Capital Markets Rules) has been provided with
the Cade of dealing required in terms of Capital Markets Rule 5106 and training in respeat off their obligations ariging
thereunder.

The Memorindum and Aricles of Assodintion sets oul the procedures to be Tollowed in the appointment of the direetors
in an extensive manper. Sharcholders having voling rights arc entitled at the Annual Generl Meeting 10 appoint
directors. Appointed direciors shall retire from office once at least in each three vears but shall be eligible for re-clection.

Principle 2: Chairman and Executive Director

The functions of the Chairman and Exccutive Dircetor are vested in the same individual, namely Mr. Claus Thottrup.
The Chatvman's main funetion is o lead the Board, set the agendy and ensure that all Board members parlake in
discusslions of comples and contentions issues

The Executive Dircctor has specific authorities from the Board (o manage the Company's operational schivities within the
sitatesy and parameléns st by o

Principle 3: Composition of the Board

The Board consiceis that the size of the Board, whilst not being large, is appropriiste, taking into acoount the size of the
Company and its operations. The combined iand varied knowledste, experience and <kills of the Board niembiers provides
the halance of competences that are tequined dnd adds valoe to the funchioning of the Board dnd gives direction to the
Company.

The Bourd of Directors shall consigl of & minimum number of two directors and n maximum of five members. The Boad
15 composed OF one eacvutive director and two independent nom-esecutive directors, as listed in Pringiple 1 above. Eich
not-exveutive direetor had submitted o declaration 1o the Board decliring their independence as stipulated ander the
Code Provision 3.4,

Principle 4: The Responsibilities ol the Board

The Board Has the fisst level responsibility for eacouting the Tour basic foles of Compomte Governange, niimely
accountability, monitoring. strategy formulation and policy developmient. The Board secks 10 monitor effectively the
implementation of strategy and policy by munagement. Clear internal and external reporting lines are established with a
view to ensuring that the Board can properly discharge its obligation to wke decisions m the hest interests ol the
Cornpany,

An Audiv Comminee hns béen et up with clear terms of referende in line with the Capital Markets Rulés  The
Cotnmiintee’s primary objective Is to gsxist the Boord in (ullilling the oversight responsibillties over the (inancial
reporting ol the Company andd its Hnancial policies and inteenid] contral straeture, The Committee oversees the conduct of
the externnl wudit pnd oclx w0 facilithte communiciiion between the Bourd of Directors, munngement fnd the external
fuditors. The extérnal auditors are invited 10 iitend the Audit Comminee Meetings, whose members repoit divectly 1o the
Board of Directors. '
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Principle 4: The Responsibilities of the Board (Connd.)
The Audit Committee established by the Board s made up of the Board Members:

Mi. Stuart P. Blackbaurn { Chairman)
M1 Claus Thottrup
Mt. Niels Bentzen

The Board considers Mr. Stuart P. Blackbum to be independent and competent in accounting and'or auditing. Such
determination wan bused on Mr, Blackbum's substantial experience in various audits, secounting and risk mansgement
rirles thraughout his eareer

The Audit Cammittee is expected to deal with and aidvice the Board of Dircctons on the following Group-wide busis;

o Evaluating any proposed transaction to be entered into by the Company or its Guarantar/s and the Paren, to ensure
that the execution of such trunsaction is at arm’s length, on a commercial busis and ultimately in the best interest off
the Company or its Guisrantor’s;

e Maintining openy communication on linangin] matters between the Beard of Directors, mansgement and its
externul suditors, including the appointment of the stditors,

Monitoring responsibality over the financial reporting processes, financial policies and ntemal control procedures.
Preserving the Company’s and Group™s pssets by assessing the Company™s and Group's nsk environment wni
detenminge bow: 1o denl with such risks.

Principle 5: Board Meetings

Hoard meetings concentrate mamly on strategy, operational performance and financial performance of the Company.
After each Board mcetng and before the next, Board mimutes thar faithfully recond attendance, key tssues ond decisions
are sent to the directors, Mectings were attended as follows:

Members Mectingy Artemaded outof teral held during temre
Mr. Clags Thettrup Joutef3
Mr, Niels Bentzen 3 outof 3
Mr. Stoart P Bleckbum Joutof 3

Sceretary to the Board

The Company Secrctary 15 Dr. Jeremy Debono, The Company's Board Secretary is responsible to the Bourd for ensuring
that the Board and Audit Commitice proceedings are gomphied with and also md the respective Chairmpan to ensure that
all members receive precise, fimely and objective mformation

Board Committees

Dhue to the size and nature of the Company's limited operational functions, the Board doces not consider it necessary i st
op a Nomination and Bemuperation Committee. Mr. Stuart P, Blackburm was doe the sum of € 10,000 for services
rendered durng 2021, Both Mr. Claus Thottrop and Mr. Niels Bentzen waived their claim 1o any remmmerntion for the
period in question, The remueration pavable o Mr. Strt 1. Blackburn was approved by the Board,

senjor Management
In wiew of the Company being primarily a fmance company, the Company does not have any emplovees. However, the
overal! mamogement comprises: Mr. Claus Thottrup as Charman, Mr. Nigls Bewtzen and Mr. Stunrt P Blackburn.
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Principle 6: Information and Professional Development

Each director 15 maide aware of the Company’s an-going obligations in termy of the Companies Act, the Capital Markets
Rules and ather relevant legislation.  Direclors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
Company is also prepared to bear the expense incurred by the directors requirmg independent professional advice should
they judge it necessary w discharge their responsibilities as direclors.

Principle 7: Evaluation of the Board™s Performanee

The Board does not consider it necessary 1o appoint & committes 1o sarry aut o performance evaluation of its role, as the
Hoard's performance is alwiavs under the serutiny of the shareholders.

Principle 8: Commitiees

The Directors are paid on the basis of 4 fixed remuneration which is approved in general meeting by the sharcholders. In
view of there being no executive positions within the Campany, the Board has not fined a remuneration policy for senior
exectnives, Futthermaore, the Board hits not s¢4 up a remuneration and nomination committee due to the imited stze and
exigencies of the opemtions of the Campany.

Principle 9: Relations with Shareholders and with the Market

The Compuny communicates with Bondholders by way of the Aniual Return and Financial Statements. The Company
alsd communicutes with hondholders with public anpouncemdints mode throteh the Mol Stock Exchinge ns well ds
enlertalning guéries and requests mode by individunl bondholders on an il hoe basis.

Principle 10: Institutional Sharcholders

The Company and the Group form part of the Borzo Lifestyle Group Sel, an Ttalinn Ccompany which s in tum whilly
owiied by Mr. Claws Thottrup and Mrs, Jeanete Thottrup.

Principle 11: Conflicts of Interest

The Ditectors are aware that their primary responsibility is dlways to act in the interest of the Company amd its
shurcholders as n whole, irrespective of who appoeinted them w the Boand. Acting in the interest of the Campany includes
an obligation w avold contlivis of interest. In such instances, the Company bas strict policies in place which ollow it
mmianage such conflicts, notunl or potentinl, in the Best interest ol the Company.

Principle 12: Corporate Social Responsibility

The Compuany and the Group understand the importance ol contributing 1o society at ludge, both in terms of the well-

betig ol its stofT, vs well ns'the contribiition wwards society ot larie. This contribution hns minifested inelf in o number
of initintives of the said Group. Further activitics of this natuse areé expected to be organised in 2022,

10
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Purt 2: Nop-Complivnce with the Code
Prinelple 4: Responsibilities of the Board

The Board his not ver developed a suceession policy for (he future compadition of the Beard of Divectors, and this in
view of the limited operations ol business of the Company.

Principle 7: Evaluation of the Board's Performance

At present, the Board does not consider it necessary (o appaint & commitiee to carry aut a performance evaluation of its
role, as the Board’s performunce is evalunted on an ongoing basis by, and is subject 1o the constnt serutiny of, the Board
wsell, the Tssuer™s sharcholders, the market and the rules by which the Tssuer s regulated s a listed company.

Prinviple 8: Commitiees

The Issuer does nol have o Remuneration Committee s recommended by this principle because it is not deemed
niecessary in view of thie very limited number of directors engaged by the Issuer. Furthermose, the Tssuer dies oot have o
Namtinution Committee s recommended in Principle 8. Appointments to the Board of Directors are determined by the
sharehalders of the Company i accordance with the Memorndum and Articles of Assoctation. The Issuer considers that
the members of the Boand provide the level of skill, knowledge and experience éxpecied in terms of the Code,

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a
system i designed 1o achieve business objectives and to manage, rather than w climinate, the risk of failure 1o achieve
business objectives amd can only provide ressonithle assuranee against materinl error, losses or T

Authority 1o minage the business of the Compauny s delegated to the Executive Director within the limits set by the
Hoar! of Directors. Systems and procedures are in place for the Company to control, repart, monitor and axsess risks fand
their financial implications, and w take timely corrective nctions where nevessary, Regular financial budgets and
strategic plans wre prepared, and performance against these plans is actively monitored and reported 1o the directon on a
rezulnr busis,

Remuneration Statement

I lerms of the Company's Memomndum and Articles of Associntion, it is the shisrcholders of the Company in General
Meeting who determine the maximum annail remuneration of the direotors. The amaunt payahle (o ane of the directors
for the vear amounted 1o € 10,000, The other two directors waived their right 1 recvive any remuncration for the yeur
under review.

No part 6 the remunciution pavable to the directors is performunce boased, and the Executive Direcior receives no
additional remumerition. None of the directors, in' thar capacity a8 o director of the Company, is entitled 10 profil
shiring, share aptinis or pendion benefite with respect to Borgo Lifestyle Finanee P.ILC.

Risk Manngement
The ohjective of the risk munngement funetion s o minimiz the cost of risks and (o maximize the returm on dssete. The
Company endeavors o achieve such objectives through proceduses that involve o cobrdinnied upproach porbss the

operntions of the Company and the Group, designed 1o identity and mensure the potential risks.  Appropriate action s
tnken by the Board to mitigate such risks. The Auwdit Commiites makes recommentations, us necessary, to the Bodrd,

I



BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Dealings by Dircetors and Senior Officers in the Company's Bonds

‘The Board has a responsibility 1o monitor dealings by the direciors and senior nﬂimmﬂw{‘nmpnn} s Bonds. The
Board approved the Code of Conduct for the transactions by direciors and senior officers in mmplmu: with the Capital
Markets Rules. The structured code of dealing, which includes names of directors und senior officials who have to
cutnply with the Code, has been filed with the Malta Financial Scrvices Authariny.

The above informution is s fair summary of the Company's adoption of the Code of Goad Corpomte Governance.
Ovemll, the Company has broadly implemented the Code where the Board of Directars believes that it would add value
t the stukeholders, In certain instances, it was felt thut the Code was more sitited to companies who held equity on the

Malta Stock Exchange, and therefore, its implementation would nit be useful for 5 Himited operating company like Borgo
Lifestyle Finanee P.L.C.

Approved by the Board 6f Directors on 13 May 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Claus Thottrup '\3
Director

bum
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

Ruport on the Audis of the Finuncial Statements

We have audited the individual financial statements of Borgo Lifestyle Finance P1.C. (the “Company™ and the
consolidated financial sttements of the Company and its subsidinsies (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 17 to 45,
which comprise the statement of financial position of the Compuny und the Group us at 31 December 2021, and the
stutements of profit or loss and ather comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company and the
Group for the period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies and other
explanntory information.

Chpinion

In tur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
end the Group as #t 31 Decomber 2021 and of of the Company's and the Group's financial performance and cash flows
fhrr.hvuyﬂ'rIhmmdmlhm:mﬂnnw'vdthlhumquhmmunflnmmmmthmchlkmﬁngSmdMu;dmdhy
the EU and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 1995 (Chapter 386, Laws of Mula).

Baxis for Opinion

We conducted our sudit in sccordance with Imernational Standards on Auditing (ISAs), Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company and the Group in accordance with the Intemmational Ethies Stundards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our sudit of the financial statements in accordance with the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for
Warramt Holders) Directive lssued in terms of the Accountuncy Profession Act (Cap. 281) In Malta, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the [ESBA Code. We believe that
the sudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Koy Audit Matters

Key sudit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financinl statements of the current period. These matters were nddressed in the context of our audit of the fnancial
statemnents as & whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepurate opinion en these matiers.

Loany Receivable

The net proceeds from the Bond jssue were used to advance loans 1o its Subsidiary company and « Related company,
which at 31 December 2021 stood ut € 4,820,000. A loan of € 2,000,000 to the Subsidiary campany was used for the
refinancing of debt on the construction of the superyacht MY SATORI, whilst another loan of € 2,820,000 was advanced
to & Related company and was used to partly finance an upgrade project for an 800 year-old luxury hotel development in
Tuscany, Italy. The latter loan was subsequently assigned to the Parent company, with the Related company remaining s
a joint surety to the loan.

S Ty Ml yalo w Rabrr Py @ 8 et af fhn et s o B Ty rowrmaneray’ L. 10 rsmicers of sehist sre sepiermiie and e ey =it
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

Loans Recelvable (Contd ) _

During the audit process, we ascertnined ourselves that the Subsidiary company’s sudited financial stafements and the
Parent company's management sceounts disclose such amounts due to the Company, We have agreed the terms of the
loans to supporting loan sgreements. We have also asessed the financinl soundness of the Swhsidiary and Parent
companies, and in so doing, we mude reference (o the latest audited financinl statements, management sccounts,
forecasts and other prospective information made availeble 1o us. Based on evidence mnd explanations obtained, we
concur with management’s view with respect to the recoverability of the loans receivable.

The Company also hus an investment in & Subsidiary company. We have confirmed this investment to supporting
documentation and tested the investment for impainment. We made reference to the last sudited financial statements or
management accounts available. The Subsidiary company has & strong financlal position and therefore no impairment
wis required.

Chther Infoivmation
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the directors’ repart.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial stotements or our knowledge
obtained in the andit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

With respect to the directors report, we also considered whether the directors' repont includes the disclosures required
by Article 177 of the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Based on the work performed, in our opinion:

. the information given In the directors’ report for the finuncial period for which the financial statements are
prepared 18 consistont with the financial ststements; and

. the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act (Cap, 386),

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and the Group and its environment obained in
the course of the audit, we are required to repart if we have identified material misstatements in the directors’ report and
other information. We have nothing to report in thiy regard.

Respornsibilities of the Dirsctors

The directors ure responsible for the preparation of the finuncial statements of the Company and the Ciroup that give o
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud o error.

It proparing the financiul siements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Campany's and Group’s ability 1o
continue sk a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company snd the Group or o cease aperations, or have
no realistic alternntive but 1o do s,

14
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

Auwditors* Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable ussurance about whether the financial statements of the Company and the Group
25 a whole are free from muterial misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditars’ report thut
mcludes our opinion. ‘Reasonable assurance’ is & high level of assurance but is not # guaranies that an audit conducted in
sccordunce with ISAs will always detect a muterial misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materfal if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
ecanomic decisions of users tuken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also;

. Identify und assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due o
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtuin sudit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misststement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ervor, as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery,
intentional amissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understending of internal contral relevant 1o the mudit in order 10 design sudit procedures that are
appropriote in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's and the Group's interna! control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rewsonableness of accounting estimates and
related dis¢losures made by management.

. Conclude on the approprinteness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the
sudit evidence obtained, whether » materinl uncertainty exists related to events ar canditions that may cast
significant doult on the Company’s and Group's ability to continue us a going concern. If we conclude that s
malerial uncertainty exists, then we are required to draw attention in our auditors' repart to the related disclosures
in the consolidated finnncial stutements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company und the Graup to ¢ese to continue s a going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated finuncial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underiving transactions and events In
a manner that-achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient approprinte sudit evidence reparding the finincial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group 1o express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are respomsible fior
the direction, supervision nnd performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
Opinion.

. w:mmunimewhhmﬁuchugudwlﬁlwmmmguding,mgumwmmthtpammdmmﬂ
timing of the audit and significant sudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our audit

. We also provide those charged with governance with & statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters thut may
reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence nnd where applicable, related safeguards.

15
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C,

Report on statement of Compliunce with Principles of Corporate Governance _

The Capital mhu-mmw&MHthmmmmmmm:Mmmmwm
intheirﬁnnunlaepm:Stnnmunlur(:mpﬁnmpuwidingmnplmimurﬂwmmlmwhiahlhqrhw-dnpmdh
LhdeqfﬁimiphaufﬁuudGummd&zuﬁmﬁwm&nﬁethﬁhmmmmmplhumﬂm
the financial period with those Principles. The Capital Markets Rules also require the suditors to inolude a report on the
Statement of Compliance prepured by the Directors,

wﬂhhﬁmﬂmﬁhﬁhhﬁmﬂ%&umﬁiﬂhdﬂmlummmmm
this staiement is consistent with any other information included in the Annual Report.

Wummmquh-udm,mdmdumeunﬂuwhuthmmcﬂm*smmumirmmlﬂmunhinnhdadhﬁc
Smmmuftumplmm:rthcﬂmundnmmla,nrrmmqﬁnimmlh:d&u&mmnrﬂm&mpmy's
carporaie governance procedires or its risks and control procedures,

mmapaﬁm,msmmurmumﬁmmwmﬁwmmmmmmmmy
mmmmmmmme&cmmmmﬁ tssued by the Malta Financinl Services
Authonity,

WonhumndrhuinfumﬁmmmimmilnUuDhuim‘Rnpuﬂnndnmﬂdundeukkcmhmtwﬁh:huﬂhnd
finamcinl statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Under the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) we nre required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. We have not received all the information ind explanations we require for our audit.
. Adequate accounting records have not been kept.
of-.mwmmmmhwthmMumgmmm
We have nothing to report fo you in respect of these responsibilitics.

13 May 2022
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BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 202

Note Fiiro Fiirm Eura By
Hevenue 4 1256450 TH4,200 337,400 89,200
Digect aid Operationial Cvgihesids 5 (1. 280.305) (1.175.440) (250,000) {250,0007
Cormss Profit/{Loss )i Toterest Murgin {21.455) (391.240) 7400 %200
Administrative Overhendy (184,827) (171, 6%5) (80 047) (79.231)
ithier Owperatingg Income 6 63,782 17.897 -
Operating Profit(Lass) 7 (144,000 (545,028) 7353 (40,031
Finane Costs K {37013 {1.853) -
Profit{Lossi before Taxntion [ 148.0601) (346,911) 7353 40.031)
Tax Expense 9 (30,590} {13,720 (A0.590) (13.720)
Loxs after Taxation (179, 191) 560,631 (23237 {83,751}
Toral Comprebiensive Loss for the Year (17191) (56631 ) (23,227) 133,751
Earnings/{Loss) per Share o 11.05) (3.30) {13y (il

The notes om pages 23 to 45 form an mtegral pan of these fmancial statements.
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BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

ASSETS

Investment in Subsidiariics
lntangible Asscis

Vesselx

Loans Reveivable ut Amortised Cost
Total Non-Current Assels
Inveniorics

Tradit and Oiher Roceivables

Cash anid Cash Equivilents

Torsl Current Assvis

Tural Assets

Note

I
12
13
14

i5
L

-

Group Compuny
2021 2020 2021 2020
Eurn Turg Euro Euro
C = 170,000 120,000
150,999 144350 - S
7762500 H,07500 - -
TR20,000 280,000 A R0 4 K20,000
10,742,494 R 4.4900,000 4,500,000
L6 64 17,833 - .
2,401,777 1850817 356,127 27426
18511 0653 - -
1436354 L.AETA03 356,127 2TRA26
FAI7H. M52 12585 153 5 446,127 268426

I8
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BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Group Company
2021 203l 2071 2020
Note Eurn Etirg Eurn Eiro
Sharc Capital 1] 171,200 171200 170,200 171200
Reserves 18 2 806,024 5,991 087 - -
Rethined Earninod/({Losscs) 260,392 197.515 (149,294 (126,037)
Total Equity fi, 246,616 6,350,802 21,906 45143
LIABILITTES
Rorrowings 19 4916460 4,905,239 4,916,860 4,005 250
Bank Borrowings 20 194,977 104 604 - -
Total Nan-Current Linkilities 5111837 5.009.867 4,916,860 4,403,259
Trade snd Other Pavables 2 1,672,099 1460218 362 853 34,170
Rank Borrowings 20 102,894 45392 - -
Overdrnan Bank Bulanice 17 198 134 148 i34
Tux Linhiliry Y 44310 13,720 44310 13,720
Total Current Liahilities N 1 820 400 1519484 407,361 318024
Totn! Linbifities 6532237 6,529,351 5324221 5997 %3
Total Equity and Lisbilities 13,178,453 12,589,153 536,127 5268426

The rites ot pagis 23 1o 45 form an integral poet of s Mnoncia) woements.

The financial statements o piges 17 8 45 were approved and aulborised for issue by the Boand of Directins cn 13 May 2027 and
signed by

Mr. Claus Thottrup - b
Dircetor ' Director




BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Group

Balapce ut 1 Januury 2021

Comprehensive Loss for Year
Losa for ihe Yeur

Movemiens on Heserses
Reveral of Rewrves on
Lipuidation of Subsiliary
Deprectation on Revaluation
Exclunge Conversion Riserve

Balance at 31 December 2021

Ealanee at L January 2020

Comprehensive Loss [or Year
Loss for the Year

Movement on Reserves
Deprivciation on Revaliation

Exchange Conversion Resorve

Balance gt 31 December 2020

The nodes on pages 23 10 45 form an miegral pert of these financiol statements.

Yacht

Shire Other Revaluution Rétained

Eura Eura Eurn Euro Euro

6,359,802 171,200 2323412 3667275 197.515
(1T9,191) - - {179.191)

72318 - - - TLIIR

> e » (178,750 178,750

(6,313) - {6,313) - -

240,610 171,200 L3749 J 488525 269392

Ba10, 350 171 21000 231,738 3 R4m028 79,306
(260,631 - 15606315
- . (178,750 178,750

10,074 10.074 - B

359 802 171,200 2iMH12 1667275 197515




BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Company
Share  Acenmulated
Total Capital Losses
Eure Ewrn Eurn
Balance at | Junuwary 2021 45,143 171,200 [126,057)
Comprehensive Loss for the Year
Loss for the Yeat (23,237 - {23237
Balance at 31 Decomber 2021 21,500 177,200 (149,294}
Balance at | January 2020 Uk K94 171.24m) (T2.306)
Comprehensive Loss Tor the Year
Loas for the Year (53,750 (53,7510
Balance ot 31 December 2020 45,143 171,200 (126,05T)

The nctes on paees 23 1 45 Torm an inteerml par of these finundial daiements



BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2024
Note
Eura Euro Eurn Einrigs
Cush Flows from Operating Acrvities
T.osa for the Yeor (179.191) (3006311 (23.23N (53,7513
Autfuisnnents for
Amnortidmion of Bond Cosis 11601 L1601 R L1601
Drepretiation 275,000 275,000 - -
Reserves on Liguidation of Sub-Subsidny TI3IR - - .
Goodwill Adjusz, on Liguid, of Sub-Subsidiary (5.575) - - -
Movement on Exchange Conversion Resorve (16387) 1074 - -
Teox Expronse 30590 13,720 30500 13,720
185356 (2511.236) 18,954 (28,430)
Chiinges in _
Invenigries 1.764 ROk - -
Trude and Other Receivables 108475 48,055 {2,988) 4,080
Accmed Tnterest Receivablo (SL.100) (38.239) (58.091) (39.2007)
Acered Interest Payable - - 1,216 .
Trodt amd Other Payables _ 12R.605 249,440 92,163 5564
Movement om Relited Company Avcount 26,337 (68.962) = =
Mavement on Purenl Company Aol (654, 897) (105.423) - -
Cash Lost from Operatinns {152,455) 1 VLS5 (61,746) (57.956)
Clash Flows fromn Finaneing Activities
Movemen an Bimk Bormowmis 147.873 1 SLERI0 - -
Movement on Sobsidiary Company Account - - 48,304 34,104
Moaovenent on Paremt Coammpany Acomin 13378 23,623 13374 23,623
Net Cashi from Flnanging Activities 161251 173623 H1.6H2 57,787
Net Mavement bn Cash and Cash
Equivalénts B.796 9,166 {6d) (194)
Cash md Cash Equivalents at Beginning
of Yew 92519 353 {134) s
Clish and Coash Equivaleats st End
(134)

ol Year 7 1835 9.519 {198}

The nities on piges 23 (0 43 form anintegral port of these financial stabements.
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BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

L

21

22

23

Reporting Entity

Borgo Lifesiyle Finanee PLLC, (the "Company™) 15 a public hmited company domiciled and incorporared in
Malta. The consolidated finnmeinl statements comprise the results and financial position of the Parent company
namely, Borgo Lifestyle Finance PLLC and its Subsidinry, and sub-subsidiary. (logether referred w s the
"Ciroup ™), detals of which are included under Note 11, The Group s primanly imvolved in offering luxury
vaht charering services.

The Company 's registered affice 1s ot Viults 14, Level 2. Valletta Warerfront, Flonana, Mali,

Basis of Preparation
Statement of Complinnee

These consohdated financial statements have been prepared 10 accordance with International Fmancial
Heporting Standards as adopted by the EU (the “applicable frnmework™), which standards were issued by the
International Aceounting Standards Board (IASB)Y. All references in these finapcial ststements 1o 1AS, TFRS or
SICAFRIC mterpretntions refer to these adopied by the UL They have also been drnwn up in accordance with
the provisions of the Compamies Act, 1995 (Chaprer 386, Laws of Malm), 1o the extent that such provisions do
not conflict with the applicable framework.

Basiy of Measurement

The financial siatements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for Vessels. which are stated ot
fair value.

Cining Concern Basis

IAS 1 states that finuneial statements are required 1o give @ trae and Gur view and are 1o he prepared on o going
comeern basis, undess 1 s mapproprinie 10 presume that the Group will coptimue in business for the foreseeable
future. Under this basis, 1t 15 assumed thit the Group has neither the mtention nor the necessity of Liguidation
or of curtailing muterially the scale of its operations,

At the reporting date, the Company and the Group had positive pet equity of € 21,906 and € 6,240,610
respectively and the Company had negative workmg capital of € 51234 whilst the Group had positive working
capital E615.954. The Company registered o foss of € 23,237 for the year and the Group also registered a loss
af € 179,091, At the reporting date, the Company had sccumulated losses of € 149204 whilst the Growp had
retained carnings of € 269,392

The Company together with its Subsidiary and Pasent companies had been mimally negatively affected by the
pandemic, Although COVID-19 was soll present during 2021, the business operations for 1ts Subsadiary
mnproved compared 1 2020 smd revenues generated were similar (o pre-COVID- 19 penod. Bookings for 2022
hive beep confimmed in 2025 which mdicate that revenoes for 2022 will be os projected. At the beguming of
the 2022 season, 14 chorters have already been sold ind snother one is in the pipeline. This result s in ling
with the worldwide trend of guests looking for secluded luxury holidays. As for the results of the extended
group which ncludes the Hotel operation, due 1o the fagt that the place is set m a more seclutded apen, it
nwnintained s business with oo particular negative effests: To be more precise, from the last forecast
projections: an the opening: day of the hotel operation, the company has already reccived boakings which
indicate that the yearly budget in terms of yearly rooms revenues were nchieved with a net avernge daily rate of
€ 1574 imd a yearly oceupancy rate of $0.72%,

Accordingly, the directors are of the opimion that the Company’s and the Groop's performances will contime
to imprave and the long-term assessment 15 that the Company s and the Group’s assets will be preserved, and
consequently 1t rempins approprate to adopt the going concern pssumption anderlying the basis of preparation
of the financial statements.



BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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Basis of Preparation (Conrd. )

Funetional pnd Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Euro (€), which is the Company s functionn! currency.
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated statement of comprehensive meome and statement of financial position include the finoncial
statements of the Company and its operating subsidiunes made up 10 the end of the finoncial yeor. The results
of subsidmries acquired or disposed of durmg the year are ingluded o the consolidated  statement of
comprehensive ingome from the dute of thew acquisiion up to the date of ther dispesal. Inter-group sales and
profirs are eliminated fully on consolidation;

Subsidiaries are those companies. controlled by the Company.  Control exisis when the Company has the
power. directly or indirectly, 1o govern the financial and opernting policics of an enterpnise so as to obiain
benefits fmom its achivities. The Anancind statemenis of subssdipnes are melnded i the consolidated financinl
statements from the date that control commences unti] the dote that control ceases:

intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrcalized profits ansng from: intra-group transpetions, are
eliminmied in prepanng the consolidated fimmneinl stwtements. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same
way s unrealized profits, but only to the extent thut there 1s no evidence of impajrment.

Use of Estimates und Judgements

The preparation of financial statements i conformity with TFRSs requires management: to make judgments,
estimates und assumplions that affect the application of sccounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liablities, income snd expenses. Actunl results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assomptions are reviewed on on ongoing basis. Revisions to sccounting estimates pre
recognized m the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future penods affocted.

In the apmmion of the direciors, the acconnting extimates and judgments made 0 the course of prepanng these
finuncial statements are not difficalt to reach, subjective or complex o a degree which would warmnt ther
descoption ps sigmificunt end oritical in terms of the reguirements of LAS | {rovised),

Mensurement of Fair Values

A number of the Company and the Group's accounting palicies and disclosures require the measarement of
fair values, for both Gnancial and pon-tinancial assets ond lnbilities

When measurmg the fair value of an asset or o liability, the Company and the Group uses observable market
dati as far as possible, Fair values are categorised into different tevels inoa fiir valoe hierarchy based on the
tnpuis used 1o the valustion techmgues as follows:

Leval 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices i acnve markets for identical assets or linbilities,

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices ineluded in level 1 that are observable for the asset or habality,
either directly or mdirectly.

Level 3: mmputs for the asset or labiliny that are not bused on observable market data

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asser or linhility fall into different levels of the fair vitlue
hierarchy, then the fur value measurement 15 cafegorised o its entirety i the same level of the fair value
higrarchy as the lowest level inpuot that s significant to the entite messurement,

The Group accounts for its Vessels i fuir value,
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Basis of Preparation (Conrd. )
New Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopied

A number of amended standurds becamie applicahle for the curment penod and have been applied as necessary.
The impact of the adoption of these revisions on the Company's and the Group's accounting policies and on
the finaneinl results are nsignificant.

Cerrain new sinndards. amendments and mierpretations o existing stondards have been published by the datie
of the puthorisation for 1ssue of these pudited financial statements but are not mandatory Tor the Company s
and the Group™s accounting penod starting | Junuary 2021, The Company and the Group may carly adopt
these revisions to the requirements of [FRSs as ndopted by the EUL The Company®s and the Group's directors
are of the opimion that there are no requirements that will have a significant impact on the financial statements
inv the penvod of initial application.

Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied throughout the peried presented in these financinl
Statemunis,

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transgctions i foreign currencies are transiated o the Company’s functional curmency ot exchange rutes at the
dates of the tronsactions. Monctory asscls and Habilities denomuipated m foreign currencies ot the reporting
date are retransinted 1o the funchonal curreney af the exchange raie at that dite. The foreign currency gain or
loss on monelary items is the difference between amortised cost i the fimetionn] currency ot the heginning of
the perios, adjusted for effective mterest und payments dunng the penod. and the amortised cost in foreign
currency translted ot the exchonge mte at the end of the perod.  Foreign currency differences ansing on
retransiution are recopnised in prafit or loss

Ciroup Companies

The resulrs and finaocial posttion of the foreign operations that have a fungtional currency different from the
presentation currency. wre ranstted mio the preseomtion currency os follows:

= Assets and labilities for cach balince sheer presented are ranslated at the closmg rute at the date of thm
halance sheer;

o Ineonie and expenses for each stitement of profit or loss and statement of comprehinsive incone e
trunslisted ar the average exchiunge mies: and

s All resulting exchange ditTerenoes are recopnised in other comprelensive income

Goodwill ond fir value sdjustments srisipg an the seduisition of o foreign opération are ligated as dssels and
Habilities of the fordign opetation und transloted ut the closing rate.

Revenue

The Company

Dividend and Interest Income

The Company’s revenue comprises dividénd income from financial assots that ore messured ot fair value
though profit or loss and at fair value thriaugh othet comprehensive income. Dividenids are recopnised in'profit
o loss when the rpht to fecéive payment is edtablished.

Revenue lor the Compatiy slso comprises lonn intérest tegdivable m the ordiniry courie of busineds. Iriberest
receivable 18 recognided in the income statement on the dite of the Company’s right v receive pavment is
esiablished
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Significant Accounting Policies (Conrd.)
Hevenue (Coprd, )

The Group

Dvividend ard Intevest Income

As further disclosed in the Company’s revenne, the Group’s revenue compnses dividend income and inleress
InCoIme.

Remdering of Servives

The Group's revenue however s derived primarily from the provision of laxury yacht charering services.
Revenue for services 15 recognised 0 the penod m which they are rendered. Rovenoes for such services are
shown net of value added mx.

Direct Finance Costs

Finance ¢osts represent interest payable by the Compuny on the bond in issue as set out in the notes to these
finimeial statements. Finonce costs are recognised a5 an expense i profit and loss inthe periad in which they
are mgurred,

Baond Issue Costs

Bond 1ssue costs represent fees and other costs mewmed m connection with the 1ssuance of the bonds by the
Company to myestors. The cost of issiing bonds 15 recorded in a contra linbibty sccount and off-s¢f from the
nammal value of the bood n order fo systematically move the bond ssue cosls from the balance sheet to the
incomg statement over the term of the hond. As a result. the Company matches the cost of the bond to
accounting periods that are benefitting from the bond bemg sued. The cost of the bond is amortised over the
duration of the bond, bemg 10 years.

Investments in Subsidiaries

A subsichary 15 an entity which 1s controlled by the Company, Control is the power 1o govern the finuncial and
operating policies of an entity 50 s 10 obioin benefits from its activiiics.

An mvestment o subsidiary o matially measured ar cost. After gnitml recogmition, an imvestment in
subsichenes may be carned cither under the oost method, that 15 st cost less any impatrment losses or under the
equily method. The Company measures the mvestment in the subsidiary company on the cost methad,

Loans mdvanced by the Company 1o its subsidiaries for which sertlement is neither plamned nor HKely W oceur
in the foresceuble future, are treated as an extension 1o the Company's net mvestment in those subsidinnes und
g hided us part of the carrying amount of mvestments in subsidianies

Vessels

Vessels are measwred of cost or valuation less aceumuipted deprecionion and any scenmylated impatrment
loxses, Costinelodes expenditure that s dicectly attributable 1o the acquisition of the asset

Deprecation s recognised m profit and loss sccount on o straght-line basis over the estimated wseful life of the
sen vessel. Depreciation v provided on vessels and equipment so as to write off their carrying value over their
expected wseful coonomic Nives,  Depreciation w provided at the following aomual mtes after faking o
consideration that the Subsidry company’s sen vessel will have mn estimated residunl vatue of € 2:400,000 ar
the end of 24 years:

Sailing Yach - 417
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Significant Accounting Policies (Conrd.)
Impairmeni of Asscis

An impatrment [oss 15 recognised for the amount by which the sssel’s corrving exceeds its recovernble amount.
The recoverable amount is the logher of an asset's fair value less coss of disposal and value in use. For the
purposie of assessing impairment, assers grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifinble
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of pssets (cash
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill thot suffered on impainmeni are reviewed for
possibie reversal of the impainment at the end of eagh reporting penod.

Loans Recvivahle

Debt instruments representing financinl assers where the contractual cash flows are solely principal ond interest
and the objective of the Company's business model s achieved both by collecting contraciunl cash Nows and
where these give rise to eash Tows that ane solely payments of principa) and interest on the principal ammmits
outstanding are measured at amortised cost using the effeetive interest method, less any impairment losses.

On derecognition, impairment or disposal of debt mstruments, any gains or losses are recognised withm the
profit or liss.

Inventories

Inventorics are mensured at the Tower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory 15 ascertained on
the first i first oot basis.

Cost comprises all costs of purchases, costs of conversion and ather costs m bongig the mventories o therr
present location and condition.

Nel realisable value 1s the eshimated selling price in the ordimary eowse of busmess, less the estimated selling
CRPETINES.

Receivables

Receryvebles are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that 15 unconditional, unless they contan
significant linsneing components when they are recogmised at forr value, They are subsequently measured al
amortised cost using the effective iterest method, fess expected enedit loss allowanees.

Trade receivables are written off or provided for where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
Indictors that there s no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others. the failure by the debtor
to abide by the credit terms or failure 10 engage ina repayiment programme with the Company and the Group
for the settlement of amounts dug,

imparment on tmde receivables is presented as net expected credit losses within operiting profit. Subseguent
recoveries of pmounts previously woten off or provided for are credited aganst the same hine item,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand. deposits ot call with financind mstitutions, other shori-ienm
liguid mvestments with ongmal maturities of three months or less that are readily converible 1o known
amounts of cash and which ase subject to o msignificant nsk of changes i value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdmafts ane shown within borrowings in current labilites i the balance sheet.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Conrd.)
Impairment of Finnncial Asscts

The Company and the Group recognise Toss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial nssers
at amortised cost namely trade and other receivables, shor-term investiments and cash a1 honk.

The Company and the Group measure loss allowances at an ampnnt egual 1o lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

. debt seourities that ure determined w have low oredit nsk at the reporting dote; and
. cther debt seturities and bank halances for which eredit plan (Ve the risk of defliult odeurring ovet the
expected life of the finnneinl imtiiument) hisd oot inereased significantly since innial redogmition.

The Company and the Grioup masuare loss allowaniees for trade receivables withouit o significant Tnancing
companent and cantract hssets al an amount equal to Nfetime ECLs

When determining whether the credit risk of o financial asset has increased significantly since initinl
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company and the Group consider reasomable and supportable
informution that s relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative mformation and analysls, based on ihe Company’s and the Group™s historical experience amd
infirmved eredit ussessment and including forwsard-looking infornation.

The Compiny and the Group assume that the credit risk on o financial asset his increased significantly if1 is
more than 30 days payt due,

Thie Company and the Geoup consider o financial asset to be in default when:

. the borrawer is unlikely o pay its eredit obligatons to e Company in full, without recourse by the
Compuy and the Group 1o sctions such as realising sceurity (iCany s held); or
. the financial asset is more than 90 days past due,

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected e of a fimancial
instrument.

12-month FCLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or ashorter peniod if the expected life of the mstrument is less than {2 months),

The maxiium period consideted when estimating ECLs 15 the moximum conttactual petiod over which the
Company and the Group are exposed to credit risk,

Measurement of ECLy

ECLs are a probabilitv-wiighted cstimate of credit Tosses, Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cashi shortfalls (1.e., the difference between the cash Mows dise to the entity in secordanve with the contraet and
the ciish Mows that the Company and the Group expect to receive),

ECLs are discounted ar the effective interest mie of the fimancinl asset: In the case of micrest-free shon-term
financinl assets, such as trade receivahles. ECLs are not discounted,
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Significant Accounting Policies (Conal.)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Conrd.)

Credit-impaired fimancial asyers

At cuch reporting date, the Compuny and the Group sssess whether finnncial assets corried at amortised cost
are credit-impaired. A financial nsset 15 “credit-impaired” when one or more evenis that have a detrimental
impaci on the estimated future cosh flows of the finoncial asset have ocewrred.

Evidence that a finoncial nsset 1s credit-impaired includes the following observahie data:

. significant financial difTiculty of the bormower or issuer;

. a hreach of contract sueh as a defiult or being more than 90 days past dug;

. the restructuring of a Joan or advance by the Company and the Group on terms that the Company and
the Group would not consider otherwise:

. it 15 probabie that the bormower will enter bankmiptey or other financial reorganisation; or

. the disappearimce af an active market for a secunity hecause of financial difficuliies.

Presentation af alfpwanie foy ECL in the starement of financial position

L.oss allownnees for financial nssets memsured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carvying: amount
of the asseis. Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables, including contract assels. are presented
separpiely i the statement of compreheasive income:

Werite-aff
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company and the Group' have ni
reasonable expectations of recovering o financial asset i its entirety or a portion thereof, The Company
mdividually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of wiite-off on its financial asssts
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery and with reference to its historical experience of
recoveries.

The Company and the Group expect no sigmificant recovery from the amount written off. However, financiil
assets that are written off could still be subject 1 enforcement activitics w order o comply with the
Company’s and the CGroup's procedures for secovery of amounts dise.

Borrowings

Borrowing costs are initially recogoised ot fair value, net of trnsaction costs fncumed.  Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceed (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption vidue Is recognised as profit and logs in the stislement of comprehensive income over the period of
borrowings using the effective interest rale method.  Borrowings are classified as current Habilitics unless has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Liability for at least one vear alier the reporting date.

Trade and Other Pavables

Trade and other payables comprise obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers, Accounts payable are clussified as curment liabdities, if payment is
due within one year or less. If not, they are presented s non-current Tiabilities, The carrying amount of trade
and other payables are considered 1o be the same i their Tair values due to their short-term nature,

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of @ past event, the Compuny and the Group have 1 present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated relinbly, and it is probably thut an outflow of economic benefit
will be reguired 1o setile the obligation.

Share Capital

Oritinary shures are clussified as oquity.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Conrd. )
Earnings per Share

The Company presents basic enrmings per share (EPS) dita for ordinary shares. Hasic EPS is ealealated by
dividing the profit or loss srmibutable 1 the ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighied avernge
number of ordinory shares outstanding ai year end.

Operating Lenses

Leases in which a sigmficant portion of the risks and rewards of ownersup are retmned by the lessors are
classified as oporating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised i the profit and loss on »
straight hine basis over the term of the lense.

Employee Benefits

Pension Comrilutiony

The Company and the Group contribure towards the sinic pension m accordance with legisiation requirements.
The only obligaion of the Company and the Group are to make the required contnbutions. Costs ane expensed
in the period in which they are meurred,

Finunce Costs

Finance cost comprises interest expense,  Tnterest expense is recogmised as it acorues in profit or loss, ysing the
elfective interest method.

Forcign currency gams and losses on financial assets and financinl linbilities are reported on a net basis as
either finwnee meome or fimance cost dependimg on whether foreign curmency movements are in o nel gun or
nel loss position.

Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred fax, Curment tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss
except tothe extent thal it relates to irems recognised direetly m egquity or m other comprehensive ingom,

Current tax 15 the expected s payable on the taxable income or loss for the pened, using ax miles enacted or
substantively enacted af the reporting dute.

Deferred tax w recognised o respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabylivies for financwl reporting purposes and the amounts used for Taxation purposes,  Deferred tax & nol
recognised for

(n)  temporary differonces on the minal recogmnon of assets or habilities m a tansachon that s not a
business combmanon and that affects neither aceounting nor taxable profit or loss; and

{hy  temporary differences relating to mvestments in subsidianes, assopciates and jomily controlied ennities 1o
the extent that it s probable that they will nor reverse in the foreseeable furure.

Defermed tax s measured an the ax mtes that are expecied 10 e applied 1o temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax refes enauled or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and Labibibies are offset if there is a legally enforceable right o offsel curment tax Habilitnes
andl assets, and they relote 1o twnes levied by the seme tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, bot they intend W settle current tax habilivies aod assets on o net basis or ther tax pssets and
lishilites will be realised simultaneously.

30
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4. Hevenue
Group Compuny
2021 A0 2021 2020
Eurn Furo Eurn Fura
Loan Tnterest Recovahle 197.400 FE%200 337400 289,200
Yl Chumter fncome 1,059 050 (13,000 - .
1,256,450 TH4 200 37400 289 200
5 Direet und Operational Overheads
Giroup Company
2021 2020 02 2020
Euro Fura Eure Eura
Bond [fiterest Payalilie 250,000 250 (0K 150,000 5004
Yocht Operation Costa 1,030,305 5440 - -
1280305 1,175,440 50,000 RATIAV LT
i, Oiher Operating Income
Soirces not congidered to be part of the muin revenue generpting activities ore as follows:
Group Company
02 2020 2421 2020
Enrn Euro Euro Emro
Advande Payments Written OFF 49213 - -
Cred i Balanci Weitten OFF 9487 . -
Ciraiuities 1,951 1346 -
Insurance € lnims - 15454 -
MDB COVID-19 Tnterest Rule Subsidy Jn - -
Chther Ingome . L ous - :
63782 178497 - .
(5 Operating Profit/{Loss)
The results from operating activities ure siated afler charging the following:
Girnap Company
2021 RULL w 2020
Eura Euroy Euri Eutd
Amortisation of Bond Costs 11,601 11,600 11,601 11,6400
Auditors” Bemuneration 12,000 12,0040 6,000 5,000
Breprecittion 75000 273,000 - .
101000 10000

DHreetot’s Remunctifion 10,000

10.000

31
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71 Employee Information

The pveruge weekly number of persons employed by the Company and the Growp during the year was nil and §
respectively (2020; mil and 8 respectively ). StafT costs for the year were as follows;

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Eurn Euro Eurn Enrn
Crew Wages and Socm] Costs 195,963 120,031 -

All persons were employed as crew members on the Subsidiary company vacht

8, Finunce Costs
Group Company
2021 2024 2011 204
Eurd Huri Eura it
Interest Payable on Hunk Loan 3.1 i(1.734) = .
Ol et - {149) - =
Rehlised Pwh.ur:g!: Lose= TRIT ] - - .
Finanee Costs (3,700 {1.hE3) - -
9 Tix Exponse
Giroup Company
021 2020 2021 20241
Eura Euire Eura Eira
Current Taxation 30,590 13,720 EET] 13,720
Total Tax Charge 30500 13,70 30,590 13,724

9.1 Deferred Taxation

Mo aceount for deferred mxation 15 hemg aceounted Tor the Company and the Group on the basis that the
Company docs: not have any emporay differences and ox losses cumied forward, whilst the Subsidiary
company profitsTosses are nol subject W tax sinee the Subsidiory company's vessel 1s registered under the
Merchom Shipping (Shipping Orgnnisanons — Privare Companies) Regulations, 2004 enncted m Malta, which
states that income from shipping operations 1s exempt from twxation. Accordingly. the Subsidiary company did
ot have uny current e charge for the year.

in. Earnings/{ Loss) per Share

Eornings/(Loss) per shore 1= based on the profiviloss) aunbumble o the shareholders of Borgo Lifestvle
Fronce PL.C divided by the number of shares i ssue m the yenr-end.
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. Investment in Subsidiaries

Group Compuny
2021 a0 2021 2030
Eurn Euro Eurs Euro
Equity lnvestments
tnvestment m Sobaidinry Company at Cost - - 1 70,000 R [IRUTTH
Tatal Investment ju Subsidiary - - 170, i 10, (Wb

I The following information relates 1o thit subsidiary which, in the opinion of the direciors, prncipally affected
the results or nssels of the Company ind the Group.

2021 2020
Hig Blue Cruising Limited Malta ([1TTR Lt Lunry Yacht Chartering

[n wirn. inthe comparative year, Big Blue Cruisinge Limied held one subsidinry, as follows:

Sutridinry Company Ingorp. in % Wolding &4 Holding Nuture of Buyiness
2021 2020
Hig Blie Yichting Yailik AS Turkey - JO0%, Yaiht Building - Liguidated

Big Blue Yachiing Yatoilik AS wus liguidoted during 2021.
11.2 Subsidiarics Financial Information

The following mbles shows the Anancisl informanon relating 1o the subsidiory and sub-subsidiury compraiies
which have been consolidated within the Group.

Hip Blue Craising Limived
Andited
021 203
Fura Eira
Profit Loss) Tor the Year {155,955) 454,252
Share Capital 10,001 10,001
Reserves 5,806,024 5,084,774
Raotvined Famings 418684 395 M8y
Total Equity 6.234,700 6350064
Big Bhee Yochting Yateilik A%
Unandiled
2021 2020
Eura Euro
Laoss forithe Year - 122.62%)
Shiare Capitad - 15,650
Roservies - 6314
Accumulated Losses - (72318
Toml Equity Deficiengy - (50.354)

RE]
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.4 Intangible Assets
This balmee represents the positive/{negative) goodwill arsing from the consolidation of nvestments.
13 Vissels and Other Equipment
Ciriiup
AL At
.0).21 Adifibons I
Eiiro Euiter Eura
Valuatlon:
UY Salor Q000 (i - Q000000
At Charge At
0102 EorYeu L1221
Esrn Euro Eura
Dupreciation:
5 Saton 962 500 275,000 1,237,500
Nl Book Amouni

8.037.500

7,762.300

13,1 The vessel 15 stmed ar far value after 1t was revalued at € 9 million in 2017 by an external midependem
qualified valuer. This value was further confirmed during 2018, when the vessel was insured with AIG Europe
Lirmited for the same amount

13.2  The Company did not own any property, plant and equipment at year end.

133 The Company and the Group did not have any capital commitments at year end

14. Loans Recelvable st Amortised Cost

Group Compuny
2021 2020 2021 2030
Enrn Eutis Eura Enro
MNon=Current:
Subsidiary Company Loan - - pRLTTRITIT ER LUK
Pareny, Compieny Loan 2820000 2820 000 L0000 2520000
Tital Liians Receivabiles 2A20,000 2 820,000 4,830, (M1

4. 820,000

141 The loans due from the Subsidinry and Parent compames are unscoured and are receivable afier 18 February
2025, In the comparative year, the loans were subject to interest ot 6% per annum, however the interest rate has
been increpsed w0 74 per annum effective from [ January 2021,

142 The Subsidinry company is acting a5 # Guarntor for the repayment of the Bond Issue and mierest thereon.
Hence, shomld the Company fail to honour 115 commitment towards the bondholders, the Subsidiary company
waould still exhaust its obility towards the Company on settlement of the linbilities due to the bondholders.

143 A7 31 Dgcember 2021, the Subsmidiary and Parent compamies had the necessary resources and financin) support

to settle the lonns shonld these fall due at the balonee sheet date. The directors have therefore assessed that the
Prabability of Default and Loss Given Defult are non-existent.

M
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I5.

16.1

6.2

6.3

7.

Inventories
Giroup Compuny
2021 20 2021 2020
Euirn Eurix Eurn Enirir
Cienernl Yocht Supplics 16,064 17.533 -
Trade and Other Recelvahles
Group Cumpany
021 2020 2021 2004
Euro Eara Eurn Fuer
Trade Roceivables from Relwed Compony #1475 102,154 -
Ol Recervihles from Parent Campuny 2,076,629 1443233 - -
Accrued Loan [nterest Becejvnble 120300 [ €5 210 249508 51417
Othier Recetvables 4.5K2 250 4,582 .
Prepayments 17,705 92,9585 951 2,545
Other Tases - 37514 - =
Azt e from Parent Conipuny 1.6 14,40 1,086 14,464
2401777 1859817 156,117 TR 426

The Group’s exposure to credit sk related to tmde recewvables from the related and Parent compames 1
disclosed wn Note 233, No provison for Expected Credit Losses wis considersd necessary on the above
bulinces due, as these companies an: financially solid. The dircctors have therefore assessed  that the
Probability of Defiuult and Loss Given Default are non-existent,

The acerued oterest oo (he loans receivable due from the Subsidiney and Parent companies are due for
payment on the anniversary of when the loans were advanced to the companies i terms with the conditions
listed wn the Company”s Prospectus,

The halinee due from the Pareot company 15 unsecured, interest free and repayable on dempnd. No provision
for Expected Credit Losses wiss considersd necessary on the said balanee as the Pareot company 15 financially
solid,

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cronp Company

2021 2020 2021 2000
Kuru Euris Euru Eaitd
Cush Balnnges 3,555 4385 . »
HBank Balinces 14,958 5,268 - -
12513 0,653 = H
Baiik Overdrawn Balances (198) (134) (198} 1134}
Cash and Cash Equivilents 18315 9519 (194) (134
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1821

1822
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19.

Capital and Reserves

Share Capital
Group Compuny

2021 2020 2021 2020

Eurn Euri Eurn Etiro
Authorised
175,000 Ondingury Shares of € 1 vach 175,000 175.000 175,000 175,000
Issucd and Fullv Paid Up
170200 Onchimary Shares of € 1 each 171200 171200 171.200 171.200

The holders of Ordinary shares nre entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to atie vobe per shore at meetings of the Company,

Reserves

Other Reserve _

A reserve of € 2,317,498 was created on the waiver of a related party loan balance that was affected as part of
the agreament of the transter of ownership of the Sulsidiary company during 2016, This reserve formis part of
the distnbutable resgrves of the Company,

Yacht Revaluation Reserve

A reserve of € 3488525 represents the movement between the cost of the 8/Y Satord and its fair value as
established by an external independent qualified valuer and further confirmed through AIG Europe Limited,
the yacht’s insuress. This reserve is stated pet of the relutive depreciation on the revalued amount. This reserve
i not-distribuible,

Exchange Conversion Resetve

In the compatative period, o translation reserve amonnting to € 6,313 represented the conversion of the sub-
subsidiary’s  financial statements 1o Euro,  The sub-subsidinry’s fumctiontl currency was the Turkish Lia.
Sinee the sub-subsidinry was liguidated duning 2021, any reserves including translation: reserve have bien
reviersed,

Borrowings
Giroup Company

. 2020 2021 2024

Eura Eviris Eura Eura
Non-Cnrreni:
5% Bonds 2026-2029 5,000,000 5 AHM0, 000 000,000 S0, 00
Homd s 16,010 16010 I 116,010
Amortation of Bond Costs (32,870 (21,26 (ALNT) {21,268
Net Bond Casis 3,140 94,741 #3140 94,741
Tatal Barrowings 4,916860 4,505,259 4,916,460 o tHES 254
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212

Borrowings (Contd,)

Hy virtue of an offering memomandum dared 25 Jonuary 2019, the Company issued a Sequred Callable Bond
with a nominal value of € 3,000,000 marring between 2026 and 2029, Related bond issue costs amounting o
€ 116010 wre being amortised over the term of the hond.

The hond 15 guaranteed by the Subsidiary company, Big Blue Cruising Limited. The bonds were admitied on

the Malia Stock Exchange effective from 12 February 2019 and commenced trading on the 13 Fehruary 2019,
The guated price of the bonds as ot 31 December 2020 was € 95.

Bank Borrowings

Caroup Company
2021 a2l 2021 PiLFH
Eur Furo Kuro Fiuru
Nonm=-Current:
Bk Loans 194,977 104, 60% -
Current:
Blonk Loais 102, 894 45,392 a
Total Bank Borrowings 297473 150,000 -

A & — P

The bank Joans are secured by personil guarantees of the ultimate beneficiil owners, bear interest at the rtes
of 2.5 per annum and are repayable by monthly mstalments of € 3,783 and € 4,792 over four years, both with
amoritorium on loan repayments for the first 6 months.

Trade and Other Payahles
Group Company
2021 2020 21 220
Eura fiaro Eura Euru
Tradi Pavahles 111,424 102,356 5 ANES
Cilier Pavables 44735 279353 - -
Diefereed Incitiie RE4.007 R R -
Onher Twxes _ 170,251 133,583 - .
Aceroed Bond Interest Diie 225,189 223573 115,189 2234973
Accrusl Expremes 114,693 183,335 47350 27047
Amoints due to Related Compiny 18h50 13,005 - -
Amounti due to Subsidiary Company - . 40,300 41,990
Aoy dvee 1o Pavent Company 102,860 124,301 - -
Amounts doe o [ director m in2 - -
1,672,990 1 460,238 362451 AL 1T0

The amounts due 1o the relaed, subsidiary and patent compinies are atsecured. mrerest Tree and repavable on
demund.

The carrymg value of rde and other pavables classified as finonci] labilities measured o amortised cost
approximates fur value.
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2.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following tables show the Company’s and the Group's financinl mstruments, including those recognised ot
fitr wadae, Tor e years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, analysed between those whese fair value is based on;

Level 1 quoted (unadiusted) prices in achive markets for wdentical assets or hakilines.

Level 2:  other techmigues for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fr value ore
observible, either directly or indirectiy,

Level 3:  techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that wre not
based upon ohservable market data.

The following table shows the currving smounts and fhaie values of the Group's financinl dsedts and finaneial
lHabilities, including ther levels o the fhir value hierchy.

The CGronp
Tutal Lovel | Level 2 Leveld
Fura Fura Euro Kuro
31 December 2021
Financlal Assets
Lo Receivahle at Amortised Cion 2820000 - - 2420000
Trude and Othier Receivibles 400,777 - - 2401,777
Cush and Cash Equivailents 18513 . - 18513
5240290 - - 5,240,290
Financial Liabilities
Worrowings 4916860 - - 4.976.860
Hank Borrowings 297871 . - 297,873
Orverdrawn Bonk Balunge 198 - - 194
Tiix Liability 44310 . - 44310
6,932,237 - - t,932,237
31 December 2020
Fimancial Assets _
Laoins Recgivahle ot Amortised Cosi 2 800,000 - - 2 830,000
Trade and Olier Recelvibies 1 BSUN|T - - | 559817
Coxh and Cash Equivalents D053 - - 9,653
4 689470 - - 4,649 470
Financial Liabilities
Barrowings 4905250 . - 4,005,250
Trade smd Other Pavables 1460 235 - . [ 460,298
Bank Bormowings 50,000 . - 150,000
Overdriwn Bank Balasce 134 - - 134
Tux Liability. 13,720 - - [3.700

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2021, there was no tmnsfer between Level | and Level 2 fair
vitlue mensurement
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r Fuir Value Hierarchy (Conrd )

The following wble shows the carryving amounts and fuir volues of the Company's Gnaneial assets and finarieiol
linbilities, including their levels inthe fhir value higrrchy.

The Company
Yotul Level 1 Level 2 Leveld
Eurn Eure Eurn Euro
3 December 2021
Financlal Assets
Irpvestménts in Subsidiary 170,000 - . o000
Subhsidiary Counpany Loan R TITIT - - R LTTTNTT)
Patint Clompuny Loan ZR20.000 - - 2RZ0,000
Other Recoivihles 356,127 - . 356127
5346027 - - 546027
Financial Liabifities
Bormowings 49168060 - - 4,916,860
Ve and Other Puyables I62 451 - - J62.553
Bk Overdrown Balinoe 198 - - 193
Tux Payable 44310 - - 44310
£A314.21 - - 532420
31 Decomber 2020
Financlal Assels
Inyvestments: in Subsidiary 70,000 . . 170,000
Subibdiary Compaiy. Loan 2 000 00 - - 2, G
Patenl Company Loan 2520000 - . 2.R20,000
Onher Recoivables JTRA4260 - - 2TRA
5264426 5,268,426
Finonciol Linhilitics
Bormwmgs 4. M15359 - - 4 RS 250
Trade and Other Payables I 70 - . LIV Bl
Haork Overdiown Halance 134 - - 134
Tux Payalile 13,720 - - [3.720
52332383 - . 5223283

Duning the reporting perind ended 31 December 2021, there was no tmnsfer between Level | and Level 2 fair
value medsurement
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Financial Risk Management
Overview

The Company and the Group nctivities potentally expose it to o vaniety of financial risks, includmg fair value
or cash flow interest rate risk, eredit risk. ligumdiey risks and market risks:

This note presents information abour the Company’s snd the Group's exposure 1o each of the above risks, the
Company and the Group's objectives. policies and processes for mensuring and managing risk, and the
Company's management of capital.

Risk Management Framework

The Board has overall responsitnlity. for the establishment and oversight of the Group's and Company’s risk
management ohjectives and policies.

The Company’s and the Growp™s risk management policies are established to wdentify and analyse the risks
faced by the Company and the Group; to set appropriate nisk himits and controls, and to monitor nisks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regulurly Io reflect changes m morket
conditions and the Company's and the Group’s activities. The overall objective of the Board s e set policies
thal seck to reduce misk as for ps possible withont unduly affecting the Company's and the Croup's
competitiveness and Mesibility. Forther detarls of these pohicies are set out below;

Credit Risk

Credit sk 15 the nsk of fimancial loss to the Company and the Group of a customer or counterparty. to
fimmeial instrument fails to meet it contragtual obhgations and anses principally from the Company's and the
Ciroup”s: lonns recewvable, mvestmenis and ioide and other receivables. The Company and the Group hsve
implemented credit reviews of new and exastmg customers before enfenng e contmets. Credit risk b,
arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and finuncial mstitutions. The Company and the
Ciroup”s policy 15 to place epsh with finuncial instiutions of o ugh credit mimg

The Company’s loans receivable consists of advances to the Subsidinry and Parent companies, nnmely Big
Blue Cromsing Lumited and Borgo Lifestyle Group Sel respectively, which advances have been affected oul of
the Company's bond wssue progeeds. The Comproy monitors intra-group credit exposures on o regular basis
anil epsures timely performances of these assets i the context of the overall group liquidity monagement. The
repuyment of the Company’s bonds and miterest thereon are gusmnteed by the Subsidinry company. The
Curantor in relation 1w the bond ssue 15 Big Bloe Crogaing Limmited. The Company assesses the sredit quality
of the Guarantor takimg o consideration the financiad position. financial performance and other factors,

The Company takes cognisance of the related party relationstap snd the directors do not expect any losses from
non-performance.

The Company s tmde imd other recevables mamly include wierest receivable from the Company s Subsmidiary
and Parenmt compames i respect of the advances referred o previously. The Growp™s made and other
receivables mainly include a halance receivable from a related company and alsp from the Parent compamy
which hos ussets ang funds 1o cover such amounts receivable.

40



BORGO LIFESTYLE FINANCE P.L.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13
233

134

Financial Risk Management (Conrd. )
Credit Risk (Ceend, )
Exposure o Credit Risk

The corrying amount of financinl assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maxomum exposure 16
eredit risk at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

tironp Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Eurn Euro Eurn Euto
Lonns Recewvable ot Amormsed Cos) LEX0.000 2. 520,000 4. E20.000 4,820,000
Trude and Other Receivabies T A777 1L B59.817 A56.127 IIHA26
Cash und Cash Equivalenis 14513 0653 - -
240,290 4,689 470 176,127 5008 426

Ligquidity Risk

Laqudity nisk 15 the nsk that the Company and the Group will encounter difficulty m meeting the obligations
associted with its financial hakalities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assel.  The
Company’s and the Group's appropch o mumaging liguidity s to ensure, as fur as possible, that 1 will always
hive sufficient liguidity to meet its habihties when due, under both pormal and stressed conditions. withoul
incurring unaceeptable losses or nsking domage the Company s und the Group's reputation,

The Company are exposed 1o hguidity risk m relption to meeting the future obhigations associted with s
finuneinl habilines, which comprise principaily of the bonds issued to the general pubhic and other payables.
Prodent liguidity nsk muonagement meludes, mammming sulficient cash and liguid assets o ensore the
avilahility of an adequate smount of funding to meet the Compuny s obligations.

The Company’s hgquidity nsk s momoeged actively by ensunng that cash imflows ansing from expectod
maturities of the Company's advances 1o the Subsidinry and Parent compames effected out of the bood issue
procecds, wgether with the related mterest reveivable, match the cash oulflows in respect of the Company s
band borrowings, covering principal and interest puyments, ws refermed fo in the tble hereunder.

The Group’s lguidity nsk emanates prmanly from the cash requirements for maintaimimg the yacht o the
wanter months, when it s oot operating: This s munaged by ensuning that the Subsichary company has
sufficient funds and other cash mflows 1o cover the cash outflows expected v this ke penod.

The fllowing table analyses the Compuny’s and the Group®s habilites imto relevant matunty growpings based
on the remamming period at the reporiing date 10 the contmetu] mutunty date. The amounts disclosed i the
tahle below are the contractual pndiscounted cash Nows. Balances due within 12 months equal the carrying
halances, as the impact of the discounting is not significant,
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Finauncial Risk Management (Conrd.)

Liguidity Risk (Conrd.)
Exposure o Ligwidity Risk
The following are the contraciual marnties of financial liabilities:
The Group
Within Botwesn Hetween Over
Eurn Euro Eura Enra
31 Deeember 2021
Bupprowings - - - 4,218,860
Trmde anid Other Payables 1,672,996 - - -
Bank Borrowings 102,896 102596 92081 -
Chverdrawn Bark Balance 198 - - .
Tax Payable 43100 - - -
1820400 102,596 92,081 4,916,860
A Decembar 2020
Burrowings - 4,005 259
Trode and Onbier Payvables TABN 23S - - -
Rank Bormowings 45392 43392 59216
Orverddrawn Bank Balance 134 - - -
Tix Povihie 13,720 - .
15194874 45392 59216 4,905,359
The Company
Wiihin Between Berwern {ver
Euro Euara Eurn Furo
31 December 2021
Horrowings - - - 4916400
Trade and Other Payables 362,453 . - -
Orverdrawn Hank PBalance 194 = . 5
T Pavible 44310 - Z ]
407361 - - 4,916,860
31 December 2020
Farrawings - - 4,908,254
Trode and Chher Payables 34,170 - -
Crvendrawn Banl Balanee 134 -
Tix Payable 13720 - H
Is024 - -

4,905,254
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3.6

Financial Risk Management (Conrid. )
Markei Risk

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in morket prices, such as foraign exchange currency finoncial insiruments
will affect the Company and the Group's income. The objective of market risk management is 1o manage and
control market nsk exposures within acceptahle parumeters, while optimising the return.

The overall effect of flucmations i exchange rates o the reporting date on financial instruments such as rade
debtors and payables are pot considered to be material on the results of the Company and the Group.

Fair Value or Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Company s transactions mainly consist of eaming mierest ingome on sdvances. affecied. principally from
the bonil 1ssue proceeds. and servicmg its horrowings, The Company's significant inieresi-bearing instraments.
comprising advances o the Subsidiory and Parent compamies and the bonids 1ssued w the general public, are
subject w0 fixed mterest rates. The Company hos secured the spread between the return on its investment . the
Subsidinry and Pavent companies and 1ts cost of horrowings. Accardingly, the Company is not exposed to cash
flow imterest rate risk bt s potentinlly exposed to tair value mterest mte risk in view of the nolure of the fixed
interest natre of its nstruments, which are however measured at amoriised cosi The Company's opemting
income and cash flows are substantinlly independent of changes m markel mterest rates and on this basis, the
directors consider the potential impaet on the pofit or loss of a defined interest rte shift that 15 reasonably
possible at the end of the reporting period to be wsignificant.

Currency Risk

In the comparative penod, the Company and the Group were exposed 0 currency risk on menglary amoumts
denomunated i another curreney other than the presentation cumeney of the Company and the Growp (Fura),
mamly and Turkish Lira. Since the exposure was notsignificant, no hedging was performed by the Company
am] the Group. The Company and the Group were nob exposed to currency misk ot the repoarting date

Capital Manugement

The Board's policy is to maintain o strang capital base so a8 to maintain investor, creditor and morket
confidence mid to sustain future development of the busimess. The Board of Dircetors monitors the return on
capital s well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Compeny’s objectives when managing capital ot the Company level is 1o safeguard the respective
Company's ability 1o conlinue #s & going coneern in order o provide rsturms 1o the Company and benefits
olher stakeholders, and to maintiin in optimal copital struetire W reduee cost ol capiml. In order W maimiuin or
adjust the copital structure, the Company mdy issue new shares or adjust the amount of dividends paid 1o
shurcholders.

The capitul equity. bs disclosed in the finaneial statements, constitutes its capitil.  The Company muaintaing s
level of eapital by reference to s financial obligations and commitments nrisitg  from  opetationi
requirements. Taking copniznce of the nature of the Company’s assets. together with colliteral held as
security backing the Compuny’s principal Borrowings. the capitn] Tevel st the end of the repunting penod. is
deemed adeguate by the diréctors.
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4. Related Parties
241 Parent and Litimate Controlling Party

The Company is 0 wholly owned subsidiary of Borgo Lifestyle Group Srl (the “Parent™), an lalian company
bearing Reg No. ML-2082215 and whose registered office is.a1 Via Torino 2, Milano 20123, Inly.

The altimate controlling parries are Mr. Claus Thotmup and Mrs: Jeanette Thottrup,

These consolidated financial suitements of the Company and the Group will be filed and available for public
viewing af the Malia Business Registry.

4.2  ldentity of Related Parties

The Company and the Group have o related party relationshop with s parent. subsidiory and related
COTTIPINICS.

243 Reluted Party Transactions and Balances

Group Company

2021 ad20 021 PiLr)

Fura Furo Eurp Eiro
Related Company:
Funds advanced by (10 26337 (6K.0E2) -
Subsidiary Company:
Interest charged 1o - - 140,000 124100
Fonds advanced byt o) - - 44304 34,064
Parent Company:
Chaver fees changed o - 30,000 - i
Interest charged to 1974000 1648204 197,400 169,20
Mantzmeit feos charped by (3.7 {18450 - -
Funds selvinced by (1) (641,519) (K1 80 13374 29623

Arnounts due o and from reliuted parties are disclosed in Notes 14, 16 and 21 1o these financial statements.

The key muanagement of the Company are considered to be the directors: The directors” remuneration has been
divclosed i Note 7 10 these financial statements.

244 Reloted party mansactions are enteted into on a comumercial bosis with entities which ore related by way of
commaon sharcholders who are oble 10 exercise significant mfluence over the Company s opetations.
Transactions with these companies prncipally include sdvances affected by the Company from the Bond
procecids referred 1o inthe notes 1o the Tinuneial statenrents.

25. Operating Commitmenis

Thae Company and e Group did not have any operating lease commitments ot year end,

6. Contingent Linbilitics
A1 yenr end. the Compuny and the Group did not have any contmgent lisbilines.
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27,

28.

COViD-19

The Coronmvirus (COVID-19) pandemic coninues affecting economuc mnd finamcinl markets worldwide, and
virmually all indusiries are focing challenges pssoviated with the cconomic conditions resulting from efforts w
adiiress

As the pandemic mereases in duration, entities are experiencing conditions often associated with a genernl
econopuic downium. This imcludes, bt is not hmited o, finoncial markel volanliy and erosion, deteriprating
eredit, liquidity concems, further increases in govermment intervention, increasing unemployment, broad
declimes i comsumer discretionary spending, merepsing inventory levels, reductions m production becnuse of
decreased demand, lnvolfs and leave of ahsence, and other restruciuring schvities, The continuation. of these
circumytances could result m an even broader economic downtum which could have a prolonged negative
impact on an entity’s financial results.

The Company ‘s and the Group's opemiions hod initinlly been negatively affecred by the pandemic. Although
COVID-19 was sull present during 2021, the business operations for its subsidiary improved compared to 2021)
and revenues generated were similar 1 pre-COVID-19 perniod. Bookings for 2022 have been confirmed m
2021 which mdicate thay revenues for 2022 will be as projected. At the begioning of the 2022 season, 14
charters have already been sold and another one 5 i the pipelime.  This result is i bine with the worldwide
trend of guests looking for secluded fuxury hotidays: As for the resulls of the extended Group which includes
the Hotel operation, due to the fact that the place 1s set in 0 more seciuded anea, it mumtamed its business with
no particular negative effects. To be more precise, from the st forecast projections, on the opeming day of the
hatel operation, the company has already received bookings which indicate that the yearly budget in terms of
yearly rooms revenues were achieved with a net aversge dwly rate of € 1.574 and o yearly occupancy rute of
B0, 72%,

The dirgctors have assessed the effect of COVID-19 an the Company s and the Group’s operations and ooted
that being a holding and finance company, its resulls are dependent on the results of its subsidiary and parent
companies whom it bas finmneed. The Company notes that both these compamies operatipns are showing
imprevements and progressmg as projected, and therefore, the longsterm assessment i that the Company s and
the Group’s assets will be preserved and consequently the gomng concern basis applicd 1o these fimancil
statements 15 still applcable,

Subsequent Events
The dhrectors hiave evaluated subsequent events since 31 December 2021 up to the date of approval of these

finungnl staterments and concluded that there wen: oo subsequent events. wlich require disclosore 1o the
finuncial statements.
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